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This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for individual properties and districts. See instructions in How to Complete the
National Register of Historic FPlaces Registration Form (National Register Bulletin 16A). Complete each item by marking “x" in the appropriate box or
by entering the information requested. If an item does not apply to the property being decumented, enter “N/A™ for “not applicable.” For functions,
architectural classification, materials, and areas of significance, enter only categories and subcategories from the instructions. Place additional
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1. Name of Property

“historic name _THE_COFFIN-REDTINGTON BUILDING

other names/site number N{A :
2. Location -

street & number W—; O nof for publiéation dN}A
city ortown ____San Prancisco. 7 . S D vncnmty N/A
state__ca-li?nr;ia‘:vi o code_CA_ countywco code : 075 zxp code 94105 .

3. State/Federal Agency Certnf‘ catxon

As the’ designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby certify that this &] nomination
(] request for determination of eligibifity meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Past 60. in my opinion, the property
% m [ does not meet the National Register criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant

 natidnklly (J statebwi @ ally. (O3 continuation sheet for additional comments.)
X MAm m DS fpoec 20 0

Signature ofsertifying offictal/Title Q Date
108

Califaornia Office of Higkéric Preservation
State of Federal agency and bureau |, el e .

In my opinion, the property (] meets {1"does not meet the National Register criteria. ({3 See continuation sheet for additional
comments.) ‘

Signature of commenting official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. Natighal Park Service Certification
| hereby certify that the property is:
entered in the National Register.
See continuation sheet.

O3 determined efigible for the

National Register
[J see continuation sheet.

[ determined not eligible for the
National Register.

O removed from the National
Register.

D other, (explain:)

Date of Action
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_Coffin-Redington Building

Name of Property : County and -State
5. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
‘vheck as many boxes as apply) {Check only one box) (Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)
3 private & building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
O public-local [ district 9 0 buildi
O public-State O site uildings
O public-Federal O structure 0 0 sites
bjec
O abject 0 0 structures
0 0 objects
, B 1 0 Total
Name of related multiple property listing Number of contributing-resources previously listed
(Enter “N/A” if property is not part of a multiple property listing.) in the National Register
N/A _ : N/4
6. Function or Use
Historic Functions o . _Current Functxons . . -
(Enter categories from instructions) ‘ e : "(Enter categories from™ mstruchons) :

Health Care: Medical Business

W Lot /Loading Dock

7. Description

Architectural Classification - Materials
(Enter categories from instructions) (Enter categories from instructions)
—ModernMovement: Moderne ~ foundation _Concrere
walls Concrete
roof Asphalt
other

Narrative Description .
(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or maore continuation sheets.)

SEE ATTACHED CONTINUATION SHEETS
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Name of Property

San Francisgos. 'Ga.lif.oz:g,l.a e @t
County and State N

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark “x'" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for Nanona! Register listing.)

[J A Property is associated with events that have made
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
our history.

OB Propérty is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

& C Property embodies the' distinctive characteristics™ —

of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses

high artistic-values,. or represents a significant and |

distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

] D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,
information rmportant in prehlstory or history.

-~ - L. -

Criteria ConSIderatlons
(Mark “x” in all the boxes that-apply.) - -+

N/A

Property is:

O A owned by a religious institution or used for
religious purposes.

0 B removed from its original location.

O C a birthplace or grave.

{1 D a cemetery.

T E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
O F a commemorative property.

(0 G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions)

Period of Significance

1937

Significa;lt D;tmesn
1937 NI ‘_,".; . P

Significant Person
(Complete if Criterion B is marked above)

Cultural Affiliation

Architect/Builder

FAIA

_Meyer.,—m:_ed.ezick_ﬁ

See Attached Continuation Sheets

9. Major Bibliographical “References

Bibliography

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing thls form on one or more contnnuanon sheets)

Previous documentation on file (NPS):
& preliminary determination of individual listing (36

CFR 67) has ‘been requested0845=95-C4-96-0711

[ previously listed in the National Register

[ previously determined eligible by the National
Register

C designated a National Historic Landmark

O recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey

&
T

[ recorded by Historic American Engineering
Record #

" Primary location of additional data:

1 State Historic Preservation Office
] Other State agency
[ Federal agency
O Local government
1 University
X Other
Name of repository:

G. Bland Platt Associates
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Loffs g County and State

Name of Property

10._Geographical Data

(\ 1Acreage of Property _Less than one acre

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

.

1!'i ;0! Blsnlssol l411182121910] : sl b vt b by by
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting . Northing
2[!11]!‘11!!!'1]11] 4[1[]!1!11[[1[![;;
[0 see continuation sheet
Verbal Boundary Description _ - .~ —The-Coffin=Redington Bui
= (Describe the boundaries of the property onacontmuanon sheet.) Lot 20 in Assessor's Block 3747

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation shest.) These are legally recorded boundaries.

11. Form Prepared By R :’.--.; .

nameftitle _Mrg, Bland Platt, Historic Preservarion Consnltant

organization’_ g, Bland Pl att Associates date __Marrh 24- “2000 23
street & number _362 Ewing Terrace telephone (415) 922-—3 579
city or town _San Francisco S - : stateCalifornia zip code 94118

Additional Documentation
Subm'x! the following items with the completed form:

Continuation Sheets = 29
Maps
X A USGS map (7.5 or 15_.minute series) indicating the property’s location.
‘A Sketch map for historié districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs = 7 |

Representanve black and white photographs of the property.
Additional items = 3 Maps -
(Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner . .- = .7~

(Complete this item at the request of SHPO or FPO)

name : Perrv g ‘ Mana

street & number 1200 Concord Avemmne.= Suite 200 telephone (925) 825-4424
city or town _Concord state California zip code 94520

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
pmpemes for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain
a benefit in accordance with the Nationa! Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.}. '

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect
of this form to the Chief, Admirsistrative’ Services Division, Nationat Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of
Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects {(1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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DESCRIPTIOF - -~ —-

The Colfin-Redington Buiiding is a four-story over basement
structure in the Moderne style which was prevalent at the time of its
design and construction in 1836-1837. Prior to 1846, and perbhaps as
early as 1043-1944 (based on land reccrds?, the company constructed an

addition to the rear, near the southwest corner of the originsl T
building. The addition, which measures approximately 25 feet by 30
feet, is incorporated so carefully into the original that its later
construction is not evident. However, it differs in two ways: it is cme
story higher and its cornice is devoid of ornament. Rectangular in
plan, the original building measures 137 feet % inch om Falsom Street
which is its primery facade, and 168 feet © inches along iis Beale

treset frontage, according to ihe architect's origimal plams. O0Of selid
concrete and mushroom column construction, the building consists . of a
high, strong base with three stories above and is faced with “cement
plaster”. "The building's great mass is articulaied by differentiating
its end bays through the modulation of their width in respect to the
cerntral bays" which are wider. Piers, whickh are flutsd above, carry
down to the ground, separating the building into bays. Linear
industrial sash windows within each bay are separated floor-to-flioor
with wide horizontal bands; wiikin each bay, the band i1s divided intc
three square articulated segments, echolng the division of the windows.
Ornament and detailing, restrained, except at the main entry on Folsom
treet, are Moderne. For example, the cornice, painted a different
color than the base of the builiding, is relatively simple and narrow,
but decorated with layered, connected half-circles. As mentioned above,
the cornice on the addition is the same width and color, but lacks the
half-circie ornamentation. The roof is flat, tar and gravel, and
contains a fifth floor penthouse, witk terraces, set back 17 feet irom
the Horth and East parapets, as well as elevator and mecharnical
penthouses. The interior is noteworihy for its repetitive mushroom
coclumms that support the vast floor spaces. Because the original owner
moved Zn the mid-19%0's, and subsegquent users stripped the interiar to
suit their *ndi. ual needs, there was no visible sign of Coffin-
Reding**-‘ enu ocr by floor when the present owners purchased Ttkhe

riy azd be aeir adapiive re—use project, utilizing the 20%

Invesiment Tax and the Secretary of the 7nt=*:c*'* Standards for
Rehabilitation. The Coffin-Redingica u*’c*‘v is egpecially vis o’e
Br
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since the rempval of various approaches to ithe (Oakland-Bay Bridge

result of the 1689 Lome Prieta earthguake; tzis removal oo p_acc
across Folsom Street to the Nortik and continues both East and Vest Zrom
taat point, giving way to surface parking 1ots, which can also be found

across the sireet (East) Irce the uq*'v“~xealniton Buiidiag. Untii
162, the building was the only complex on the easteriy half oI the
sguare Di1OCk; 20w the parkipg 1lo0ts to the South oIf the complex comtain
two 17-story residerntizl towers. The westerly analf of this block i
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intact and contains 2 varietly of commercial and indusirial buiidings

that are of the same vinlage as this building, but because they sit oo a
cliff, they seem more removed. Development pressures in this area will
continue, but because of iis size, corner location and substantial
rehabilitation, the Coffin-Redington Building will continue to be a
visual anchor within iis neighborhood.

EXTERIOR ARCHITECTURE

_ The Cof f‘n—Redlnzton Bu*lding is divided into sever (7) vertical
bays along Folsom Street which is the FNorth facade. (Photo 1) The Beale
Street facade has ten (10) bays, including the former employee entry
which is the sixth bay from the corner, and now pravides entry to the
ground level restaurant. With the exception of the corner bays which
measure 7 Ieet 11% inches between the piers, the bays measure 11 feet 7%
inches across.

. :

ithough the base of the building has a solid appearance, there is a
recessed opening in every bay. Vindow Irames are steel indusirial sash
with wood mullions, each of which is divided into three vertical panels
with the central portion wider and fixed whilie the side pamels are eaoh
divided into four (&) operable segmenis. Because these windows suffered
from lack of maintenance, and insensitive treatments, each was remavea,
revaired, re-glazed and painted before being re-installed.

The main entry on Foisom Street is the full bheight of the groumd
floor, as can be seen ir Photo 2, and ls notably recsssed. At the tims
of purchase, the doorway enframement was oanly visible at ithe level of
the linear transom, the remainder cf the opening being covered with a
corregated rolling meial door ic discourage intruders. Removal of the
rolling door revealed no additicaal remzining materials, so the existing
door was recreated based upon the lines established in the arsa aof the
transom, and by cormsulting the origiral drawings and distant historic
photograpvbs. The reveal is linmed in & succession of fioor-to-ceiling
bands, three of which are richly detailed in the Moderne mnde with
chevrons and floral motifs, while the band immediately surrounding il
docr frame is fiuted. At ithe sireei, the eniry surrouad is simple,
prejecting slightly from the face of the bLildﬁﬁa, and is capped with a.

denticulated pediment thal gives way ic a simpie narrow cornice composed

af triangular patte erns that separates the base 0f the building from the
floor above. Secondary eniries, cpe each on Beale and Folsom, are the
height of neighboriag bays, bui are enbanced by three to Iour bands
within that larger cpeniag. The smeiler doorways are ihen centered in
the space aznd have Fluted surrounds with simpie denticulated pediments
abave. It had been hoped that these doors could be repaired, but botx
proved rotien tc the core; new doors replicate the originals in design,
but are mahogany in cclor <c maich the centrzl entry.
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t the southeasi corner of ithe building on Beale Strest and
continuiag n rth a di stance Of four bays, the Di Ts came tc 1

with entry from the south end oi the bullalng, to szmplify loadlng ana
unlpading. Beyond, at the building wall, half cf each interior mushroonm
column projects forward, breaking the flat wall plane. Between these,
there were a number of openings protected by metal rolling doors.
Fenestration here was randomly spaced, generally linear, but not as iong
or wide as elsewhere, and filled with ipdustrial sash cortaining
numerous small panes. As part of the adaptive re-use project, this arez
was converied to ar outdoor eating terrace by creating a new floor
several feet abgve the original ground level, and by comnverting the
loading dock openings to doors with side lights to match those on the
South and East elevations of the loading docks argurnd the corner.

: ¥indows above the loading docks were randomly sized and spaced, so all

T were made to conform to two larger ones, as seen in Photo 3, including
the small pamed glazing. The large street facing openings are still
open to the air, but bhave been fitted with metal mesh rolling shades to
block excess sunlight and wind.

Above ihe ground fioor, bays are separated by substantial fluted
piers, which are smoothiy finished at the ground level. Within =sach
bay, a linear wiadow is divided vertically into three parts, with the
central section being somewhat wider; glazing is a series cof small
panes. Horizontal articulated bandiﬁg separates the windows floar to

floor as stated above.

The southerly or rear facade of the original buildiag appears to be
four (4) bays wide because the remainder is part of the 1943-44
addition. The original loading dock at the first floor, now part of a
terraced plaza, has smailer linear windows above; windows in the taree
top flpors match those or the major facades as does the cornice,
although the deccrative iripls bani of semi-circles seen on the upper
cornice does not continue beyond the first bay on this elevation. See

Photos 4 and 3.

The five (5) story additicr is pulled back Zram the southwest corner
of the buiiding the eguivalent of cmne bay. Ii is three (3) bays wide
along the south wall, and is Zour (4) bays deep as can seen in Pihoto 4.
The loading dock continued 2t the base on the east and south sides of
this additions, and bas been retained and incorporated into the placza
design wn:le aiso providing access toc offices, the restaurant and the
residential entry iobby. See Photo 8. The original corrigated irco
ancpy over the icading dock is comsidered an imporiant character-—
defining feature; however, its 1852 extensicn and 1968 zlteratiocns were
ngt. Unfortunately, the cancpy and itis supports were too far
deterigrated io repair, so using the original permit drawings, the
cancpy was replicated to match the original as can be ses in Photos 4

2 0
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througk €. Vindows appear tc be identical to those in the original

fifth 'F'im:u at

pspnthouse where-z pair

puilding with the excepiion of the
separated windows is centered over each bay.

thicker and heavier, but does not contain the
circles, as mentioned zbove. Photo 4 shows the Junction of
and the original building at the roof, andé the re-worked
mechanical/elevator penthouses, as well as the prafile of
recessed penthouse additiom. .. -

The cornlce above is
le band of ssmi-
the addition

<
vrl

the new,

Vhen the present owners purchased the property, there were oniy
three (3) small windows on the otherwise blank West walli of the complex.
Set back from the sireet one to iwc bay widths, these were placed one
above the other to provide light to ar interiaor stair system. Because
this is considered a secondary elevaition and because the building wes
converted to residential units, ihe owpers received permission to cut
additional window openings ir this wall using the lines of the origimal
retained windows as guidance. These new windows are linear and highly
contemporary to distinguisk them Irom the historic windows on primary
elevations.

IFTERICR

chased by the present owners, the interior was essentially
two large, connected, open floor plates with concretie mushroom columns
evenly spaced throughouu. The cnly indication that the addition came
iater was on the second floor where the two sections met where there was
additional structural bracing. Because the compiex had had numerous
users after The Coffin-Redington Company departed in 19533, there were
few signs of their tepantcy, and none that State and Federal reviewers
corsidered worth retention. 3Because the new use would be/is residential
units, inse¢u;ng these worked more efficiently with removal of non-
historic elevators along with several stair systems; these wsre rep:
witk central lpcated, code-conmplying alternatives.

i
&4

¥hen pur

aced

-

J

have been careiuily

|J-

Residential units of varying sizes and iayouis
irserted within the complex above the ground fiocr restaurazt and
ccmmercial spaces. All spaces, whether commercial or residentizl,

beer designed around and incorpecrate the mushroom cclumns.

nave

ADDITIONAL ALTERATIONS

inspecticns oy a licensed structural eagineer pointed up

ng deficiencies in the complex, including the fact that the

eared to be without a proper Io LnQa“ZOn and was resiing on
t, couplied with the increased load of ihe new uses, and

code reguirements residential occupancy called Ior a

Kt
4

izr
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subtantial seismic upgrade that aiso pe miited the addition of basements

and garagns,_ccnxa_ned_u‘“hln_,he_si:uc#nra+_un‘ch_a~e accessed along
the non—historic western elevaiion of the property.

Shear walls were called for, but are npot obvious to the casual
observer. Six inch thick concrete fioors, which sagged and colliected
water in numerous locations, wers essentially retained anrd repvuilt to
include energy-efficient radiant heating. ¥her compiete, the fipors
were @ inches thick which also provides sound insulation from floor to
Zloor.

The roof appeared to be origimal with layer upon layer added over
time. If alsc contained numerous pipes, vents and other appurtances
that served no useful purpose. Further, its drainage system was
antiquated and not functioning which brought water into the building in
numerous locations. Consequently, the entire roof structure was rebuilt
which was also necessary because of the new penthouse units and
terraces. However, the new surface has the same visual qualities as ihe
original

The project, of course, included all new plumbing, mechanical and
electrical as well as fire suppression systems, ané all other code
required elements., All work is covered in detail in Part 2 of the
"Historic Freservation Certification Applicatiorn”.

LANDSCAPING

There was ne landscaping on this parcel during Cofiin-Redington’'s
tenure nor was any provided by subsequent warehpusing tenants. With
conversion of the building to residential units and commercial spaces,
however, the former loading dock and parking area provided the ideal
ipcation for an ipviting bul hard-edged space that would also serve as
theé entraace to all but the restaurant portion of the project. The
decision to retain the cancpied lgcading dock with its unusual shape
provided the focal point for the balance of the design which includes
terraced concrete planting beds, contairing a variety of plaant
materials, including a2 Pzalm “aa and grassy areas. Ii also masks the
handicapped ramp that provides additional access to the loading dock

which izm turn provides access 1o the various commercial uses and spaces.

See Photos 4 through 6.

in addition to the piaza, itke owners planted 16 sireet itrees.
Intersstingly, the first ones planted were small and did not fares well.
These have been replaced recently with large, mature trees that are

(=3
impressive in size, but make photographing the complex quite difficult.
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SETTING: HWEIGHBORHOOD AKD SURROUNDING LAND USES

As will be discussed more fully in the Slgnl;wcance section, ir the

1850's and earlier, the shoreline of San Francisco Bay came up to a
peint at Beale and Folsom Streets, diagonally across from the present
Cotf fin—-Redington Building. incon Point and Rincon Hill behind it e
the Vest were exiremely steep cliffs ilhat have been excavated or cut
down over time. In this century, the most significant Iévelling took
place in preparatior for comstruction of the San Francisco-0Oakland Bay
Bridge (1936), and its attendant ramps and approaches. The appended Map
A from the Department of City Planning's "Rincon Hill - An Area Plan of
the Master Pian of the City and County of San Francisco" shows the
ffect of the bridge construction on this area. Until 1999, when the
two 17-story residential towers were constructed directly to tke South
of the Coffin-Redington Building, remmnants of Rincon Hill could be seen
as steep rock outcroppings. This dempnstrates that while the Coffin-
Redington Building is now on flat land, as late as 1937, portioms of
Rincon Hill were guite visible on the southerly three—quarters of this
block; the westerly half of the square block presently sits atop a
portion of the remains of Rincon Hill. See Photo 7. ¥ote, too, that
due to the steepness of the block south of this site, coupled with
Br*dge constructioz, Harrison Street is elevated here; ithe concrete
cridge bears the date 1036, the same year comstiruction began on the
Coffin-Redington Building. ' :

ot ('

Across Beale Street, bordered by the Harrison elevated roadway on
the south, is a major, very contemporary United States Postal Service
Center. The contiguous parking 1ot serves that building. As Beale
crosses Folscm, one is aware of the vast steep open space on the North
side that extends both East and West, the resuli of removal of Bay
Bridge access roads damaged by the Loma Prieta Barthquake in 1989,

. The westerly half of the square block containing the Coffin-
Redingtor Building, however, contains a handsome collection of two and
three story buildings, many of whick date to the 1930's, although
several are oider. The two buildings to the west of the subject
properiy, on either side of Zeno Alley are visible irn Photo One whil
the most westerly of the twoc is in the foreground in Photo 7. The mcst
interest‘ng buildings, though, face Fremont Stireet. See Photo 7. The
rear facades of most of these buildings overlook the Coffiz-Redington
siie, anﬂ were visible, along with the hillside, until the recent
constructicrn of the 17-story apartmert towers mentionad above.

e number of vacani parcels preseatly devoied to parking will
oor give way to new construction as this is a neighborbood in
on. Regardiess of changes in the area, the Coffir-Redington

1 continue to be a2 visual landmark, and its setting will not
be compromisad because of its impressive size, its cormer location, the
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wide streets that will continue tC separate it from itS nel hbors, and
iis simple but elegant architecturzl design.
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STATENEET OF SIGNIFICANCE- —

Designed by ¥rederick H.
Francisco's most significarni
Nineteentk and early Twentie

¥eyer, FAIA (1876-1961), cne cf San
and preolific architects of the late
th centuries, the Coffin-Redington Building

is the only known extant example of Mever‘s—design uf-a muiti=facitsgn—

manufactury, which, in tkhis
distinguished but undarstated
headquarters. -

have been demsilsh_‘, he is
beildings aand a variety of g
residential work for repeat

4ithough ¥eyer
plants during his long and prodigious career

instance, was an architecturaily

d, state-of-the-art pharmaceutiical

did design several other manufaciuriag
all of which appear o
primarily associated with downicwn office
overnment commissidns as well as

clients. The HModerne idiom adapted here by

Meyer in the detailing of an otherwise Classical Revival industrial

building certainly reflectis
associated with Meyer's body
witbin his body of work, the

the periaod, but is not one generally

cf work. As & rare and unusual example
Cofiin-Redington Building qualifies for
erion C. Founded in 1849 by

listing in the National Register uander Cri
piongers Andrew J. Almey, Dr. E. §. Holcen, and John H. Redington, and
joined early on by Andrew Cocffir (1859) and Horatio P. Livermore (i837),
The Coffirp-Redington Drug Ccmpany was "the first and cldest drug company
in the VWesti"™ (Ryder) uantil it was absorbed by Brunswig Drug Compary iz
1049; it was also "the first wholesale.drug house in San Francisce”, and
by 1870, the picneer firm was larger thazn all similar firms combined in
California or San Fraacisco. The last vestige of that firm, and, for 17
vears, its last headguarters, the Coffin~Redington Buildiang was
copstructed In 1836-1937, with an addition that _,yl:sulcally
essentially duplicates the origiral, completed by 1945-19486, tc
accompdate the company's continuing expansion; it housed the company's
oifices, laboratory, manufactury, warehousing and shipping activities.
Folliowing compleiion of the San Francisco-0Ozkland Bay Bridge in 1636,
1the Ca“vn Redington Comparnv's previcus headquarters was demolisked o
maks way for consiruciion of the Transbay Terminzl, a new transit center
cocznectied to the bridge by z series S'*f 109“*ng ramps to Iacilitate
ipading ard unloading er trains and buses. The new sitis
ra selected, &t the scuthwest corner of Folsom and Beals Streets,
Francisco's Rincor Zill arez, became increasingly desirable due
proximity to the newly-opened San Francisco-Ozkland Bay Bridge
ess raxps just Sou 2f the size a'ong Beale, and from Fremont
to the Vesi; ic the plers with Belt Line Railway along the Sarn
sco waterfrpnt, only three bipcks o -be Bast; and to the vast
network provided by Scuthern Pacific, owners ci much of ithe
t of the sits and from whom Coilin-Redington purchased tie
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EARLY HISTORY QF THE COFFIF-REDINGTOE COMPARY

The history oi the Coffin-Redington Company from 1848 to 1949 was
wriiten by David Warrer Ryder, author of several other corporate
histories, in 1949, based aorn corporate records, City Directories, and
early diaries and other information provided by members of the founding
Zamilies. Unless otherwise noted, quotations come from that book
entitled: The First Eundred Years = Being the-Eigniichted History of The -

As young men in their early twenties at the time of the Califormia

Gold Rush, Boston natives ZXedington, Almy and Holden pooled their
respcurces, “"chartered a sailing ship, stocked it with lumber, steel and
drugs and sent ii to Sar Fraancisco via Cape Hora." Helden was a
pharmacist, Almy had worked in & drug firm, and "Redington was
superintendent of a2 firm which dealt in lumber and certain articles cf
steel apd iron." Because the young men arrived via Panama on September
18, 1849, they had two months to explore the gold fields before the
arrival of their merchandise. Returning tc San Francisco, they "soid
their steel at a handsome profit ... used their lumber cargo tec buiid a
store at 125 Sansome Street, sitocked it with their cargo of drugs and
opened for business in November 1849." Under the name "E. S. Holden &
Ca.", because Holden was entitled to call himself Doctor, the three
partrers became "the first whciesale drug house in San Francisco". By
early 1850, they had set up branch siores in Soncra and Stockton to
serve the gold miners.

By mid-1850, Helden had moved to Stockton to run that operation

whick he repamed "Holden Drug Company", and the San Francisco store had
burned in ore of many fires in those early yvears, but much of the
inventory had been preserved. Vhen they found space in Charles R.

Story's space nearby, the business was re-pamed Story, Redingicn and Co.
“Story had previously dealt ... in cils, paint and glass® and had

recently absorbed a "small drug concern®, so this was a good fit.

852, the f'rm vwas sc prosperous that it took
v Directory: "Story, Redingtor & Co.., impo
n drugs and mecdicines ... cifer for sale at
lzrge and well selecied assortment O '
T nean and American chemicals of all kinm
cles, extracts, surgical instruments, druggi
arbs, fancy soaps, itrusses, leeches, together wit
prising the stock of a druggist or physiciaa.
nerz: agents Ior the Graeiienburg
ia, Oregon znd the Sandwich isl
Baisam of ¥ild Cherry, Osqo éd's Ind
Sarssparillia, dunt's Elixir, Hyatt
ctoral. Sansome Streeil Corner of

3

F) 0 .y
3

b B

l1 M' v} .
1@

<

o om B

ia



WPS Form 10-0e OMB Appvoved No. 16340018

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

The Coffin-Redington Building
Section number _& _ Page 10 ~ San Francisco, Galifornia

e 1854 City Directory, the firm "listed themselves as

® whickh was then re~mamet Redingrton & Company and mved to &

n th

* Importers & Jobbers, Drugs, Medicines, Chemiczls'®. 1In 1885, Stary
+ hghi:d

[ <

r space at 107 Ciay Szreet.

4 licensed pharmacist and pariner in the Few York firm Sherwood &
Ceifin, Andrew Coffin journeyed to Marysviile, California in 1852, where

"he established the wholesle drug house of Rice-Cofiin & Co.® In 1856,
that firm merged with Redingion & Cof-Rrce*remainatixrﬁarysvtftgﬂxr‘—"W”

run that branch while Coffin soon returned to New York where he
established tne firn‘s buying arm under the name Coffip-Redington and
Co.

.

Circa 1852, "Horatio P. Livermore got the first job of his life in
the Boston buying cffice of Redingion & Company." After completing his
apprerticeship, he moved his family to San Francisco in 1857, where he
became the firm's “clerk and bookkeeper". Four years later, he became a
partrer in the firm. The 1861 City Directaory lists the partoers as:Jjohn
E. Redingteon, Andrew J.Almy, Eoratio P. Livermore, &. G. Coffin and
D.¥.C. Rice.

rder points out That Sar Francisco's early businessmern "wsre laying

the political and moral, as well as the business and ecornomic

undations oi the grea? meiropolis ints which Sar Francisce has since
grown.... (The partmers) were not ju successful bus*nessmen, they
were —— they had to be -- community leaders and metropolis builders."”
During the eariy 1850's, Redington served as a voluateer fireman and
pariicipated in both the 1852 and 1836 Vigilance Committess, formed io
combat lawlessness ip those early days. Together, Redington and
Livermcore "were actively associated with to score of enterprises
dedicated to community progress and civic betterment®, while building *a
wholesale business ithat served not only San Francisco and California but
the whole Pacific Coast.*

2ars, ¥r. Almy died, but the firm was

A -

r
ival of John Redington's cousin, William P.

863. In 1870, Coifin's son Isaac S. joined the
pariner and manzger of the Kew York office®". The

T gr indirect, caused William P. Redington o writa
ars 1ﬂw ﬁoi_s a* *mmensc b"siness, Detween six

Ve sell as
iicksiiver
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The Ciiy Directory that year noted that the firm was "scle agents
Redington Quick Silver Compary and Hosietiter's & Drake‘s Plantation

TR R e L N
Bitters".

According to Ryder, “guicksilver, extersively used in mining gold
and silver, was in great demand". Consequently, when “a vast and
extensive deposit®” was found in Fapa County in the late 1860's,
Redington and Horatio Livermore purchased the land, formed the above-
refierenced company, and hired-laborers to-mime—the quick-siiver—which——
was then soid through Coffin-Redington. Socor thereaiter, Horatio
Livermore's brother Charles left his partnership in a drug store in
Virginiaz City 'to head the quick silver company.

The year 1870 was significant, too, in that the firm hired its first
travelling salesman, S. G. Miller, to service communities from San
Francisco Forth to Victoria, British Columbia. Miller would purchase a
“buckboard and team®, stop to display his wares, mail orders to Saa
Franciscoc, and upon completing his business in Victoria, would sell
sanmpies, horse and wagon, returning to San Francisce by ship." This not
only provided exposure ané business for the firm, but later resulted in
Cofiin-Redington partnerships with local entities in a number of cities,
all tied to and supplied by the Sar Francisco headquarters.

In 1870, Coifin-Redington established "the first pharmaceutical
laboratory in San Francisce under the direction and mapagement of ...
Edward ¥heelock Runyon". who became a Professor of Pharmacology at the
California Colilege of Pharmacy. “Here, the firm did its own grinding;
made its own fluid and solid extracts, and put up a lipe of its owrn
pills, powders, etc.” for local customers as well as for export to
¥exice, Ausiralia and Asia. The company's exportiag business actually
began in the 1850's, when they supplied ships sailing the world over
with the variety of medicines reguired by law. The laboratory continued
to be a focal voint of the business until the 1940's, when research and
the praciice of medicine advanced to such a degres that large companies
took over this work., Coifipn-Redington's lab was then "purchased by the
Parke, Davis Company under an agreement which made Coffiin—-Redingion the
Pacific Coast digtributors for Parke, Davis' full line oI
pharmaceuticais. During the same period, "Cofiin-Redington became a
distributor for Bli Liily & Co. of Indianapoiis." For these reasons,
coupled with the bigh cost of iabor in runniag a lab, Coifirn-Redingion

Turin i

1
closecd its menufacturing pizmt in

i 947

By the mid- 1870's, the firm name oOnce again became Redington & Co..
on the Vest Coast, and William P. Redington, who had joined the firm in
1863, bacame a Darimer. 3ut significant changss in ithe firm's
menagement Tosck place beiween 1880 and 1884, when Horatic P. Livermore
scld his share of the partnerskip to devoie his snergiss Io other
interests sei forth bdeiow; and when Jobhn H. Redingion retired at the end
of 1884, by which time Andrew G. Coffin, on tke East Coast, had turned
Lig interest over to his son Isaac.
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. Livermore sold his partnership in Redington & Co. to
ing father, Horatip Gates Livermare, who, in 1852, had

&

1 of the Fatoma Vater and Mining Comnany, responsible Ior
American River at Salmon Fails, and ouliaﬂng a ditch o

u‘anspo;z water 1o a number of miniang camps in the early i850's. In
purchasing the company, the Livermores became owners of 9,000 acres,

once part of the larger Rancho de los Americancs, a Spanish Land Grant.
ccord;ng to Coleman's PGEE in Califormia, i852-310952, f%+the elder .. .

Livermore planied 500 acres in orchards and vineyards tc demonstrat

faith in the agricultural future of the region.

and winery were built at Folsom."
dream of meking an industrial city at Folsom and
icaz.’

down the Amer

e his

& fruit-drying plant

But the elder Livermore “clung to his
is plan Ior logging

He envisioned a dam above Folsom from whick "a
canal was to be built on eack side of the river to the town of Folsom,
rial water power under a total fall of

one for the develcpment of iandustrs
80 feet and the other for west-side irr igation.

canal was constructed.”
completed uniil 1893,

1882.
in 1881,

same tipe,
was firnished

"Boratio P.
water power as a direct moti

¥ark on
after the

the Livermores formed the
absorbaed all of Natoma's water power ri

Fols
ight

indusiry woulc be superceded by eleciric power.
to explore ways to
concept in the beginning stages of electiricity.

Sacramento

kpow bow it cculd be done,
Light Company in 1892.
found the solutiop, and after soiviag camplex I
ed for the

the elecirica
following vear

use water power

l,powe; was generat

Sacrzmentc Eleciri
the Cazliilornia Gas and Electric Corporation, a forerunmer

purckhased by

-

of today's Pacifiic Gas and Elect

Coleman atiributes
ngenui
using Americar River Ilood waters ¢o* irrigat

Livermore's i

Forman 3. Livsrmors

Engineers begar work on

Ty, for in 18

was prasent
the projd

10 Creaie elecC

ric Company.

4 2
in .‘.‘:’—.8,

ect.

today's. Folsom Reservoir
€2, he nad envvsioned
Instead,
wohen the Army Carps of

som Water
s and properties.
Livermore begar to see that by the time the dam
the wheels of
* Consequently, he began
a radical

ion

-l

Cniy the east side
the dam commenced in 1867, but was not
elder Livermore's death Jjanuary 13,

e force for

tricity,

Power Company which

the

He envisioned powering

‘s street railways with electricity, ard though ae did not
he formed the Sacramento Electric Power and
Engineers from Wesiinghouse and General Electric

inancing difficuliies,

irst time ia early 18095.The
the Livermore companies were reorg nized into T

Gas and Railway ! omnanv company was

kb
&}
9]
4

To bring the Livermore story full circie, it is im@Qrtan* ta state
tThatl Eorztic ?. Livermors's scon Norman, mentioned above, gd Coifin-
Redington in i326,and bscame President of Coifin-Rediangtcon in 1829,
returning to his father's originzl passion. An engineer by training, hs
wag elactsd ic the Beard of Director of PG&E in 1916, a position e
continpued to hcld as late as 1991, when ae was 79 years cid. ﬁ‘ter
receiving his enginsering degree, and working at General ic Ior z
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vear,.-he had returned-io-Sacramente—te-—assis:
electrical and lumber operationms, during whick time, he “made an
exhaustive study of other hydroeleciric plants in the state." When the
family interests wound down,

(SR EA-d -

Forman Livermore "establisbed his own
business, dealing in heavy machinery and representing the American
Locomotive Company”, which was so successful that he coniiaued to
purchase more PG&E stock, -along with-sieck ip-Ceoffin-Rediagten—He——~
aisopurchased bonds in ithe Natcmas Company, successor in interest to his
granciather‘'s holding, znd became a long-time directar of thai company
as well. '

urce

In 188G, Redington & Co. moved again
southeast corner of Second and Stevenson
destroyed by the fire which fopilowed the
constructed an interim building om Third
Townsend Streets in less than two weeks,
i, 1806. In the aftermath of
records and scme suppliies which wers
their needs. The day before,

give

[=3

the disaster,

to larger headquarters at the
Streets. The building was
1906 sarihquake. Emplovees
Street between Brannan and
opening at that location Jume
various employees rescued
n tc the City and military Zfaor

ship icaded with "drugs, medicinpes and

chemicals" for the company bad docked, but had not been unloaded; one
employee notified ithe army at the Presidio, who sent trucks to the pler,
where ithe supplies were unlcaded, and taker to the Presidic fo aid the
relief effor:e.

Returning to their pre-sarthquake sit
the company elected to dissolve its long-

corporation namecd Coffin-Redingion Company.
Redington,
son and grandscn of the founders,

Coifin, Vice-President; V¥iliiam 2.
Manag and Sherwood Coffin,

assistant treasurer.
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indemnity Company, California Packing Corporation, and Crocker Eational

Bank. Ceo-incident with Livermore's appointment, Sherwood Coffin became
Vice-President and General Manager.

In the early 1930's, Cofiin-Redington learned that the site of its
¥ission Street buiiding (1923) woulid be requirecd for construction of the
San Francisco-Qakland Bay Bridge's ramps and the Transbay Terminal, a
new transpertation center. The company located an ideal site at the
southwest corner of Folsom and Beale Street, with proposed bridge access
ramps via immediate cross sireets Beale and Fremont and just blocks to
the South, the waterfront withk its piers and Belt Line Railroad just
three blocks tc the East, and lis own rail spur, courtesy of Southern
Pacific Railroad from whom they purchased the lamd. Although city
records show that the actual purchase was not recorded until March 1237,
an agreement io purchase must have been reached at least two years
earlier because Ryder reporis that following site selection, the Coffin-
Redingtor Company sent iis ¥anager of Operations "on a ten thousand mile
irip, to learn first hand the details of comsiruction, arrangement and
equipment of the most up-to-date and efficient wholesale planits in the
country." According to Ryder, the company then hired its architect
Frederick H. Meyer, FAIA, and other professionals to transliate that

——y
information into plans for the new building for which permiis were
received iz October 1936.

SITE BISTORY

In his introduction to Ihe First Huadred Years, Ryder includes a map
ef San Francisceo in 1849-1850, which he atiributes to the archives of
the Board of State Harbor Commisioners for San Francisco Harbar,
Lppended as Map B, the mep shows the shore line at that time together
with wharves, as well as sireets then laid ocut. The shading indicates
oopulation density. Lgocating the interssction of Beale and Foisom near
the iower edge of the map and near center, it is apparent that Yerba
Buera Cove was just across the sireet. It is interesting to compare

s with ¥ap C dated 1832, which shows irndividual bBuildings ian this

:iest days, this area has been known &as
: i B benind it and to the West. I his
Californis Place Fames, Zrwin G. Gudde es *rinccn", z Spanish word,
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four (4) blocks to the Wesi, on and near Secoad Street, including South
Fark, a protected elipse laid oul by Gearge Gordon circa 1835. 051ng

Albert Shumate's Rincop Bill and-South 5 m—w Zariy——
Lgsn_gngblg_Eg;gabg.jggd.as a reference, it is ﬂnberes~wng 10 note that
Jobr Redingion lived at 31 South Park from 1836 to 1861; Horatio G. and
Horatio P. Livermore lived on Minnz between Sevcnc and Third in 1859,
and cn Folsom between Second and Third in i880.

The demise of Rincon Hill as a desirable-residential-—sarea—is - -
attributed to the cutting of Secondé Street Irom Markei Street through
Rincon Hill in 1869. Because Rincon Hill was 120 feet high in
someareas, the chasm created bv the cuti severed this easterly portion of
the arez Ifrom the more densely populated residential area. While some,
arguing for the cut, had oplnea that property values would increase,
zhey ir fact declined drametically. With the invention of the cable car
in 1873, the well-to-do left Rincorn Hill for Nob Hill and octher i
> neighborhoods previcusly unattainable due to the heights of hills. . ..

Bt

The 1886 Sanborn Fire Insurance map shows considerable indus:r:al 3
ity in the Folsom and Beale area. The subject parcel contained
s -Boiler VWorks and Pendergaast's Foundry on the corner with o
ly four (4) dwellings to the South followed by Vhiziier e
s “Tean Stables", the company itself being in the next
th of Folsom on BeaTe ¥ith the exception cf Sazipt Breandan's:
e Northeast corner of Fremont and Harriscn, the remainder:
of the scuare block was predominently residential with a few smzll scale
commercial establishments. The same combination of uses was prevalent
in neighboring blecks. ’

-
iy

The 1894 San Francisco Block Book shows this easterly half of
sguare block divided into seven (7) parcels, four (4) of which were
generous in dimension. The 190! San Francisco Block Book shows that
Edward K. Dunbar has purchased most of this same area, his lot baving a
l Street Irontags of 4857.11 Zeet and 137% feel on Harrison; the
therly property line extends an additional 50 feet to the west,
ing a segment of land 50 feet by 91.10 feet, wizl
c

) b H,

e
th access 1o Zsne/Zoe
s. Dunbar also owned & 25 oot 2y 68% foot parcel between the
(82.1 feet on Beale and 137% feetl on Foisom) ond the
to publicaticn of the 1906 San Francisco Block Book,

ic Co. had purchased Durnbar's large loi and the corner
b

wored ) o
Q

O th )
H N A
0

just Forth of the Saint Brend,n s com:*ex. Thus, Sout
i iength oI 3eale Street in a-s o-acx, a 350 2
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Francisco®: "The 1006 Saxn F“anClSCD aar:ncuak= a nd fire leveled the
neighborhood. The only peopie f nHITT

immediately afier the earthquake were workers ancd seamen. Their seli-
built shacks made of refuse lumber, packing bcxes and sheet iron dotied
the slopes of Rincon Hiil.* To iilusirate this last point, a permit
search for this properiy produced an October 1907 permit »o builld a one
story "shop" measuring 14 feet by 30 feet with a height of 10 to 15

feet. VWhether it was actually constructed-or-notisnotkmown—— "~

Eowever, it does not show up on the 1813 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map of
hn parcel which is completely vacant; with the exception of the Saint

rendan’'s complex, the square block contains at most four (4)
st;ucbures, ciustered around what is now called Zemo Place, originally
known as Zoe Place.

Responding toc growing pressure that dated back tc the 1850's, in
1829, President Hoover appointad the Hoover-Young San Francisco Bay
Bridge Commission, and California‘s legislature passed the Califorais
Toll Bridge Authoriiy Act "to lay out, acquire, and construct a highway
crossing connecting San Francisco wi th the County of Alameda", among
other things. In 1830-1831, studies were completed that resulted in
preliminary designs, and the selection of the oplimum site for bridge
piacement: "from Rincorn Hill in Jan Francisco to Yerba Buena Island and
thence to Jaklarnd". In ”932. the Reconstiruction Finance Corporation was
rmed and the War Depariment issued the final permit. Invitations to
o;d were issued in January 1933 with responses requirad in February and
March; constructican began on July @, 1 )33. The double-decked San
Francisco-Oakland Bay Bridge officially opened to motor vehicles on
Jovember 12, 1836. ‘

SREN

[ZN

The iower deck of the bridge was reserved for trains, but their
introduction was delayed until comnstruction of a new regional
traaspariation facility, the Transbay Terminal with its looping ramps

could be ce As;ruﬁted and that recuired Coffin-Redingion's move into its
new facili According toc Ryder, ilke company moved inip its anew
facilities om Jume 7, 1837; interestingly, the Golden Gate Bridge opensd
to traific just 10 days eariier, on May 28, 1637. According to Ide
A:Qg;:gg& Qni Engineer, demclition of the company's Iformer headgquariers
of that vear, and the Transbay Terminal cpened for
in 1930, whic aWCH marked the required ferminat
c isco Bay and the demise of the Fe
1 point of commxter and visitor access to z s
he East. Xcre limited ferry service rasumed 30
ult of the 1989 Lome Prieta earthcuake.

Department's “"Rincon HILII P
d Bay Br:cge was compistad i
S ci Merzet area {(includi

trioa::ng cenier. Many wo
vantage of its location which was
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the rail network and the central disirict of the Bay Region's largest
city and next ic a bridge coanpection witkh ths growing East Bay area."

The Planning Department's “"Rincen Hill Plan" continues: “Soutk of
¥arket (including Rincon Hill) grew in importarnce as a distribution
center until aiter WVorld Var II, when shipping modes went Ircm rail to
truck. Breakbulk operations became less important as cargoes were
containerized. Competition from Oakland and other ports further reduced
San Francisco's ship trade. As .ransnorta, on-related activities ieft,
vacancies were filled by warehouses, storage, distributors, government

- services and other uses nct as dependent on the port.”

As ncted above, the San Francisco-Oakland Bay Bridge opened to
traffic on FBovember 12, 1836. Sazles Ledgers in the San Francisco
Assessor's Oifice show Southern Pacific beginning to respond tc the
impending event first by conveying land at Beale and Harrison to the

P City ané Couniy of San Fraancisco on April 2%, 1936. This would appear
to be for the elevated poriion of Harrison Street, Scuth of the project
site, whick is dated 1938.

In the naxt transactiocn, dated ¥ay 26, 1836, Southern Pacific
conveyed to Coffin-Rediagion Co. a parcel at the southwest corner of
Folsom and Beale with a frontage om Folsom of 137.5 feet and a Beale
Sireet Irontage of 205 feei, known as Lot 1. Op March 31, 1837, Coifin-

ui
i
b3

4

Redingtor acquired an additional QO-TDD* frortage on Beale, and the Lot
Fumber became 1B. (Orn December 31, 1942, Cofiir-Redingtomn purchased an
additicnal 60 feetl on Beazle, and added ancther 50 foot purchase to their
hpldings along Beale on August 26, 1943, giving tae company a total of
335 fset here.

FREDERICK H. ¥EYER, FAIA
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ngtorn selected Frederick HE. Meyer
; ¥eyer was approaching 60 years
n his field egualled by few.
subs;anb‘a’ly exceeded 100

v the i
as the architect for the;r new Ia
of age, znd had acnlaved promin
Aluhcuz% his body of work to that
highly sigrificant commissioas, all biographical pieces consistently
point to his 1912 appointment to San Francisco's Board of Consuiting
] s. & three-member body that served imstead of a city architect,
orimary responsibility of devisiang "the comprehensive Civic
scheme and suparvising iis execution"; together, ihe tr: nverate
igned the first Civic Center buildiag, the San Francisco Civic:

tori 1634, he had been elecied & Fellow pf the American

chitects, the AIi's highest accolade and recogrnition of
I t body of work. That same year, he was

1tive commitiee 3’ the San Francisco
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appointed by Governor Richardson (1923-1827), a position to which he

continued to be fe—ébncih+é£'fi€6 the 1840's. He was alsc a proponent
of the autompbile and increasing the qualitiy and cuaniity of the roads
availadle for travel which r°SL1tea ip his being a founder and long-time
director of the California State Automobile Association as early as the
1620's, a lopg-time member of the San Francisco Chamber of Commerce's

ransportation committee, and in 1942, his appoiniment as San
Francisco's Administrator of Defense Transnor.atlon z federally
supported position that gave bim the sole authority to deploy all modes
of **ansno** to ensure defense workers couid get to work while
conserving rubber and fuel.

Vith these responsibilities coupled with the care of his unwell

wife, and a variety of other interests and commitmenis, Meyver's
architectural practice was more limiied during the 1830's than had
previously been the case. The Coffin-Redington commissionp was one of
the largest projects he undertook duripg tkhis period, and ihe only omne
of these that survives, as will be discussed below. It is alsc the only
known example of his work that employed Moderne ormamentiatiorn.

Born in San Francisco June 26, 1876, Frederick Herman Meyer was "the
son of a highly-skilled cabinel maker", according to the cbituary
prepared by his firm, following his deatk on March &, 1961, at age 83.
The obituary continues: "He was one of the last survivors of the
pioneer architects of Samn Francisco dating from a time when there were
ng architectural schools in Califorala. His career started in the early
1890's as draftsman for a planing mill where he applied technical
knowledge imparted by his father.”

In 1899, he and important piorneer architect Samuel Newsom formed a
partnership, FNewscm & Meyer, which lasted until 180l1. Among other
commissions, thé pair is credited witk a residence Ior Rudolph Spreckels
ina San Franciscc, and The Maria County Bank.

.

p with Smith O'3r

irca 1802, ¥r. Mevyer i ien
co commissions attributed o
e
1

kS an
the firm was dissolved in 1807
the partnership include: <h
Galien Building, the Hastings 3B
¥onadnock Buiiding, the Riald
Building.
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traditicn of Europsan Renaissance architecture were
Sl

-191i3, ¥r. Meyer was sc highly considered that he was

e one of three consulting archiiects to assist the City of San
isco in re-organizing its Bureau of Architecture, and to overses
de51gn and construction of the Civic Center complax that was being
rushed to campletion for the 1915'Paﬂéﬁé:Pac*3:c International
Exposition, His fellow commissicners were equally well considered:

John Galen Howard and John Reid, Jr. The three men are credited with
designing the Exposiiion Auditorium, completed in 1914, in Civic Center.

0
m
()
®
0
H ot
Q,
- U) (\)

Downtown San Francisco buildings designed by ¥eyer while a sole
vractitioner include: four commissions for Pacific Gas and Electric
Company (1913-1614); two buildings for the Y.M.C.A. (1921-1524); The
German House Assoclatioan (1813); the Beverly-Plaza Hotel (1812); The
Belgravia (19i6) and the Warrington (13815} Apartments; and the Post-
Taylor Garage (1922). Duripg the same period, he designed a number of
office buildings, including the Bankers Invesiment Building (1012,
1618), ths Xohler & Chase Building (190%9>, the Physicians Building
(1g14), and the Press Club/Poetz Building (1013).

4ccording to the Foundatior fer San Francisco's Architectural
Heritage's files, Meyer was associated with Albin Johpson from 1920
<Through 1027, Buildings attributed to this partanership include the
Terminal Pl aza Building (19202, the Elks Club (1924), and the Financial
ild

ing (19270,

Lithough Meyer associated with Albert J. Evers (Meyasr and Evers) in
he 1940's, he appears to have had his owa firm at the time he designed
cae Coffin-Redingion Buiiding. FNoted architectural researcher and
historian Gary "A. Goss reportis that Meyer's commissions iz the 1930's
and 1840's e: a vast complex, since demciished, for Lucky Lager
Brewing (2 J; a Y.H.C.A, iz ihe Western Addition zrea (1835,
branch libraries in the Bermal Heighis and West Fortal (1836) areas;
oublic ngdszng ior San PFramcisco's ~oL31ng Authority (i83€), and a2 tweo-
giory priantiag plant on the

cl ot

pl South side of Harrison near Secoand Street

(19£1}. Of these, cnly the ¥.X.C.A. and the two small neighborhood
lipraries survive; all are restrained Caliicrniz adapiaticns of the
Spzanisk Coionial Revival. Of these, the C -Redington Bulliding is
the most imporiant extant exzample of his work duriag ihis period based
upcn i1%s resirazined X¥oderae styling, counlie t2 iis mocnumental sizs
and 1ts manufacturing/warshousing use, coac ot otherwise associated
with Mever's body oi work

In aédition to ¥r. ¥eyer's many achievemsnis discussed above,

acccrding to his obituary, ¥r. Meyer was a Past President of the
Sortkera Czaliforaia Chapter of the American Instiituie 27 Architects, an
2 Regicmal Director of the A.I1I.4. It sizies, too, thzt 2e was a
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director of the Redwood Empire Associaiion, 2 member of the Bohemian
oce :

Club and of numerous iccal yachi clubs.
COFFI¥F-REDINGTOF BUILDING, FOLSOK AND BEALE STREETS

In October 1936, Coffin-Redington Company applied for and received a

buildiag permit to comsiruct a foLr-sbor] and -basement building with a .

Foisom Street frontage of 137.5 feet and a depith along Beale Street of
170 feet, with a note that an additional 30 feet was allocated to the
"yard". According to the permit, the architect was the famed Frederick

‘Meyer, FAIZ, with L.H. Fishkian as engineer, and Cahill Brothers,
Inc., coantractors. According to Ryder, the company moved into the new
building on Jume 7, 1937,

Original plans, obtained from the San. Francisco Department of Public
Works Department of Building Inspection, include elevations (which show
no significent or irreversible exterior changes over time) as well as
fipor plans which are marked {o show how the company planned tc use the
spaces. The basemeat ran the width of the building at the rear, but was
cn‘v fgur (4) bays deep equivalent ta the rail spur area, with the

emainder being Lnexyavated the largest area was devoted to
"PaperStorage & Cutting", next 1o which was the "Acid Storage Room” on
one side and tae "Boiler Room" on the other.

The northerly ope-third {o one half of the First Floor was devoted
to the company's oifices, served by the two Folsom Street entrances.
Lccording to ¥r. A. Kirkham Smith, who began working for Coffin-
Redington in 2946, the smaller, more westerly door gave access to the
company's wholesale liquor department whose best known label was "0id

itzgerald"; an interior wall separating this function Zrom the offices
ie aot shown on the origimal plams. Behind the liguor area and
accessible to It was a large “Bulk Storage Room". Accordiag tao Mr.
Smith, the Beale Street enirance was ithe emplcoyee entry. However, the
original drawings show this as the epirance to the Waiting Room, for
those wishing to crder and/or pick up immediately. Behincd these spaces,
to the Scuthk, were the Receiving Raoom (facing Beale Street) and the
Shipping Rcom beyond.

g 'I) [4

&n L-shaped Mezzanine F cng the rear, overlcooked the
1k Storage Room and the O contained Lockers and
Vashrooms along the rear with o g "L" containing a Sales
Rocm, a Direcior's Room the Pharmacy Study Room, and a mid-sized

Rora

Storage Room, Iincer

Plans for the Second, Third and Fourii Floors do not speciiy useage,
and only show ar "L"-shaped mechanicazl core, stairways and z Locker and
Tcilet complex on the Fourik Floor. The Rpof Plan is similarly simple.

T e % - - - 3 s - e B - - - o ~a K ~ - e}
2yder siheds additicmal ligkt cn the new duildiag: This steel
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reinforced concrete bulliding has four stories and a2 basement, totaling
120,00C square feet of fioor space. Besides ampie guarters for all of

T ar

the various depariments, it coniains an Especially construcied
refrigeration room to take care of btiologics, serums anéd oiher
merchandise reguiring refrigeration. There are more than five miles of
shelving, mostly adjustable; and a complete syst—m of chutes, conveyors
and tubes connecting all departments. Spur track acilities permit the
bringing of railroad cars inte the building; a large loading zone, where
trucks can back up to a canopy-covered plaiiorm, speedsS the mOVEmSHt O
goods to customers. A& parking lot provided for customers'’ convenience
and holding some 25 cars becomes more and more appreciated as the

parking problem grows more acute.”

As noted above, Coffip~Redingiorn di
cariy-to-mid-1940's, but there is no re o 'Lion in City
records, probably due to Vorld Var II actiy ities. The rationing in
effect during the war makes it difficult to upderstand how the.company
was able 10 secure the materials azpd manpower tTo accomplishk suck aan
undertaking, unless the expansion aided the war elfori in some way. it
- Former- employees who are available for consultation either joined.
: thecompany after the war, or were Iighliing in the war at the time; they
report that the buildiag was as it is today by 1945. Land acquisitions,
aoted above, in late 1943 and mid-1644 sugges‘ that the addition was
undertaker in 1944, and perhaps ccmpisteé in 194%. Sanbora MHaps
indicate tihe ”cmnlex was constructed 1837-1046,

0 D¢

£

COFFIF-REDIFGTON BUILDIEG - 1949 - 1909

On July 20C, 1649, the San Framcisco Chropicle annpunced that Coffin-
Redington would merge with Brumswig Drug Company later that same year:
the merger itook place on October 1, 1949. The merger was heralded as
“the joining of the twe largest independent drug wholesalers on the
Pacific Cpasi", and made it clear <hat: "The San Frarncisco house will
cperate vnder the name Cofiin-Redingion Co...." Accordizg to 4. Kirkham
Smith, Coifin-Redingtorn continued to cccupy the buildipg until 1988,
when a new one-story building was conmstructed ia South Sa-.'1 Francisco; iz
the early 1950's, cne-story operztions were considered mpre efficient.
In March 1952, Coffinp Roa*ngtoL Took sut a permit To add “"Corrugated
iron extension to present shed cver loading platform”.

In April 1858, Carpenter Paper Company applied Ior a permit ic

=T =

"¥iscellaneous removals; minor alieraticns io lcading 4dock; new

-

move agn-bearing sariliiicns, Vood &

)
interior partitiocns; new flooring, oainting, electrical
res, eic." On spril 21, 18€%, Car_:nter 7 ]
-Redington Building, comprising Lots 1 and
er fi: Zor two permiis. Tihe Zirsi was
figor. Removs non—bearing partitions, Ho
o =d Gilazss &
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The second permii, probably required by the C

Mezzanine Floor". ty, was

Ior inierior demplition as describsd aLBOVE.

On February 18, 19€8, the propertiy was conveyed by Southern Pacific
to Nationwide Papers, Inz. This may well have beern necessary to clear
the title. DNationwide may also have owned Carpenter at this point. On
April 15, 1968, Roos-Aikins, Inc. chhascc .he property from

Nat ionwide. ) T T T

Roos Brothers was an clid and imporiant San Francisco departiment
store Zounded in 186% by Adolphe and Achilile Roos, who had recently
arrived Ircm France. It 1987-1858, Roos Brothers was purchased by the
Robert 8. Atxins Clothing Comparny to create Roos-at kins Department

Stores whick was purchased in 1966 by Genesco.

In July and August of 1968, Roos-iitkins appliied for three permits to
ziter the interior of the building. TFirst was: "To remove
ap rozimately 900 lineal feet of non-load bearing interior pertiticms
6,000 scuare feet of suspended ceiling syster including
m_sce;lanncus puilf in casework and equipment, preparatory to remodeling
work to be appiied for under separate permit®™. The seccnd reads:
“Rehapilitation of existing service building", and the third correct
mis~interpretation of the code. 4 fourth permit issued in October of
that same year called for “"instzllation of elevator entrance frames &

éoors only "

R

W
flh'(J

Cn ¥arch 26, 1969, Roos-itkins sold The property to the Annuily
Board of the Southern Baptist Convention. In February 1981, Roos-
Atking, as the tenant, applied for a permit to “Comstruct partitioms for
terporary offices in building in process of being sold...." On August
25, 1981, Genesca, Inc. purchased the propertiy, and on September 1, 1881
tc a development group. Since that time, the property has
ownership five () times. Xany of those owners have obilained
ior from the ciiy for projecis ranging Irom a storage locker

10 condominiums, byl none has come to fruition. Because
s were €33ﬂed, it is not possidle to know what, i1f azny, Iateriar
aticns have taken place ogver that period of time. In 1889,
3=* use o a development proposal, Lot 1B, containing ihe
: became Lot 20, with a poriion of its 1
comprises the remainder of this easterly
L sqLare bicck. Lot 1 is now known as Lot Z1.
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9 with developmeni in San Franciscc's downicwn
Downtown Plan, developers Degan Io loek to the Soulk
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rumors that the San Francisco Giants would buiid a new baseball stadium
witain walking distance tﬁ_tha South, and recegrnizing that housing of

all kinds was scarce, they elected to purchase the properiy and convert
the buiiding to apartments with 2 major restaurant on the ground floor
for the tenants’ convenience. Because they were fascinated by the
Coffip-Redington Building and its hisiory, the owners commiited to
designing their adaptive re—use project to meei the Secreiary of the
Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation projecis. Parts One and Two of
+he Investment Tax Credit Certification Applicaticm have been approved,
the latter with conditions, and have served as the mester plan for the

-

project; Part 3 is in process.

ARCHITECTURAL SURVEYS INCLUDING THE COFFIN-REDINGTON BUILDING

In its 1984 Extendec Survey of Downtown Sar Francisco, The
Foundatiorn for San Francisco's Architectural Heritage's professional
eveluators, including a representative from the State Office of Historic
Preservation, rated the Coffin-Redington Building as a bulilding of Major
impcrtance. The definition of such buildings is set farih in Heritage's
Splendid Survivors: “Major Importance — Bulldings which are of
individual importance by viriue of architectural, historical and
environmental criteria. These buildings tend to stand out for their
overall qualiiy rather than for aay particular outstanding
characteristics. ...are eligible for the Faticnal Register...."

'U
'.. ']

ihe

(=}

The Department of Ciiy Plancing's "Rincon Hill Area c
¥aster Plan of the City and County of San Francisco" sel
Coffir—Redingtor Building as one cof only eight (8> su--d
to be preserved and protected from future develcopment. Plan cites
the buiiding's "restrained ¥oderne idiom", the articulztion of the
building's massing "by differentiating its end bays through the
modulation of their width [4 feet narrower 1 bays and set

i
the
s in the area

bda 9
[
n:

b‘tﬂ

(5
off by more massive niers] in respect o The central “a"s“ and the
variety of decorative “¥oderne elements”, irncliuding “decor ztive chevrons
znd half circles at the Irieze and Ifluted piers, dividing the facade
into a series of horizontal window bays witdh industirial sash. A
cdentilated iintel, fiuted piers, znd decorative Ilgral patierns and
chevrons decorate the two entrances.”
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NAME OF PHOTOGRAPHER: Mrs. Bland Platt
DATE OF PHOTOGRAPHS: March 2000
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Photo One

Looking Southwest at the East and North elevations of the Coffin-
Redington Building, note new recessed fifth floor penthouse set back
approximately 17 feet from the parapets. New 1l7-story residential tower
is visible at left edge of photo. At the right, next to the Coffin-
Redington Building is a new small scale 4-story residential structure.
Visible in the foreground is a parking lot used by the United States
Postal Services.

Photo 2

Looking Southeast at the central entry to the Coffin-Redington
Building on Folsom Street with its restrained Moderne surround, the most
decorative feature in the complex. Note, too, the dentil pediment with
incised cornice above. The entry, of stained wood and glass is new,
having been replaced pre-199%5 with a rolling metal door; the only
remaining feature was the transom which, together with distant historic
photos and original drawings provided the design solution for the
replacement. The wall light fixture on the left is an example of those
used on all elevations.

Photo 3

Looking Southwest at the East wall of the forner recessed loading
dock that accomodated a rail spur. HNote the projecting half mushroom
column. This space has been converted to an outdoor dining terrace
connected with the ground floor restaurant. Former loading dock
openings have been converted to doors; side lights are new, duplicating
those on the Scuth and Zast elevations of the loading dock to the rear.
Vindows above were variously shaped, sized and placed; all now duplicate
two original ones as sSeen aere,
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Photo 4

Looking Northwest at the South (rear) and East elevations of the
Coffin-Redington Building as well as the East and South elevations of
the addition. The former parking lot servicing the loading dock has
been converted to a terraced, landscaped plaza while retaining and
resurfacing the loading dock, and relicating the loading dock canopy
using original plans. The large opening in the foreground, right, was
formerly the rail access. The covering is a wire mesh rolling shade
providing protection for diners from sun and wind.

Photo S

Looking West at the East elevation of the 1940's addition with the
newly terraced and landscaped plaza in the foreground. The entire run
of the loading dock canopy is visible beyond.

Photo 6

Looking Southwest along the refurbished loading dock with canopy
above. Former loading dock openings have been converted to doors; side
panel windows have been added in the few instances where they did not
originally exist. The designed panel, far left, is on the North wall of
the 1999 highrise apartment building next door to the South.

Photo 7

Looking Southeast along Fremont Street at the variety of buildings
occupying the westerly half of the Coffin-Redington square block. The
difference in elevation between the East and West portions of the square
block is emphasized by the fact that one only sees the top 6 floors of
the new 17-story highrise to the South of the Coffin-Redington Building.
The 1936 elevated roadway in the background (right) is Harrison Street.
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100 YEARS 4Go

A look at the Map oa the left and
then at the Center Spread shows what -

-G S S Y o
vividly and quickly what new-born
San Francisco was like in che year
1849 when COFFIN-REDINGTON was
founded. Their first location, ac 125
Sansome Street, was, as caa be readily
seen, not far from the water's edge, as
Sansome ran into the Bay just beyond
Pine Swueet. Likewise, their present
locadion—100 years later—ar Folsom
and Beale, was then right on the edge
of that portion of the Bay known as
"Yerba Buena Cove.”

Observe that Marker Street, which
ran plump into the Bay ac First Screet,
was blocked at Montgomery by a sand
ridge sixty feec high; aad then rwo
blocks farther up—at Duponc (now
Grant Avenue) — by another sand
ridge tweacy-nine feet higher.

The Mission Road was the only
road connecting the licle city with
the Mission at Sixteenth and Dolores.
It started at Pine and Kearny and ran
along Kearny, crossing Market ac Post
Street, berween the two sand ridges.
This was a privately built and oper-
ated road, so you had to pay to use
ii; and che Toll House, where you
paid, was at Post and Montgomery,
about where the Crocker Firsc Na-
tional Bank now stands.

Of course, if you didn't wish to pay
toll, you could always use the Missica
Trail, which was free, if crooked, steep
and narrow. It began ac Bush and
Kearny and wandered diagonally —
crossing Sucter slighdy below Dupont
(Grant Avenue) and Stockton; com-
ing into Geary just above Stockton,
and striking O'Farrell below Powell.
To traverse this same route today—
in 1949—you would have to walk (or
ride your horse) through Sloane’s;
then through the Sucter and Grant
Avenue corner of The White House;
then on through Magnin's and Macy's
o O'Farrell; wrning then a bir o
your left to wander across Marcket
Streer and pass through The Empo-
rium to Mission Street. (Considering
what this would entail, especially on
horseback, probably it would be sim-
pler to stay home and look at the map).

Five times in as many years the
liztle city, as seen oa the left, was al-
most completely destroyed by fire. But
five times it was as quickly rebuilt. For
chen, as now, the spirit of the Ciry of
Sainr Francis was indomitable.

Map courtery of Board of Siase Harbor
Commissioners for San Francisco Harbor.
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